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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

operations and cash flows for the period then endad, The external auditors are engaged {o express an independent opinion on
the consolidated financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guideiines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board,

The consolidated financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting poiicies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the economic entity and placé considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enabie the accounting
officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sefs standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or deficil in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly

reproach. The focus of risk management in the economic entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring ail
known forms of risk atross the economic entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the economic entity

endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastrueture, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints,

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based en the information and explanations given by management that the system of
intemal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. However, any system of intemal financial control can provide only reasconable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit,

The accounting officer has reviewed the economic entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2018 and, in the light of
this review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the economic entity has or has access to adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared cn the basis that the municipality is a going concern and that the Greater
Tzaneen Municipality has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

accounting officer are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, the municipality's external

Although the
- jesponsible for expressing an opinion of the financial statements.

Slidated financial statements set out on pages 7 to 134, which have been prepared on the going conicern basis, were
by the accounting officer on 29 September 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Y.<
M. Letope! [
Acting Municipal Managgr
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Accounting Officer's Report

The accounting cfficer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2017.
1. Review of activities
Main business and operafions

The Greater Tzaneen Municipality is situated in the eastern quadrant of the Limpopa Province within the Mopani District
Municipality Area of Jurisdiction. It comprises a land area of approximately 3240 km, and extends from Haenerisburg in the
West, to Rubbervale in the East (85km), and just South of Modjadjiskloaf in the North, to Trichardisdal in the South, (47 km).

Financial review

This review highlights the Municipallty's performance for the past year but does not in any way attempt to provide detail of the
performance. Full detail appear in the annual financial statements. '

Overview of the Municipality's Results:

The Municipality's overall actual operating results against the corresponding approved budget figures are scheduled in
Appendix E1 of the Annual Financial Statements.

The Statement of Financial Perfformance reflects a summary of income and expenditure items, while the segmental operating
resuits per service are shown in appendix D of the annual financial statements. Over the past financial year the operating
revenue increased from R 1 085 041 053 {0 R 1 122 605 916 while the operating expenditure increased from R 1080 825 511
to R 1 114 426 001.

The Muricipality reported a et operating surplus of R 7 700 408-(2016 R (8918 481), for.the financial year under review.

The main revenue sources of the Municipality are:
- Property rates;
- Service charges and
- Government grants and subsidies

Whilst the highest expenditure iterns are:
- Employee related costs,
- Bulk purchases and
- Repairs and maintenance

Council has embarked on implementing a range of revenue collecting strategies to optimise the collection of debt owned by
consumers. The outstanding consumer debtars as at 30 June 2017 amounts to R 365 660 046 (2016: R 324 325 388) of which
R 258 633 917 (2016: R 207 233 176) were impaired. Indigent debtors lo the amount of R - (2016: R & 699 788) have been
written off as uncollectable. The total provigion for impairment increased from R 207 233 176 in the previous financial year to
R 258 633 817 in the current financial year.

Unspent conditional grants and receipis decreased from R 19 434 127 (2016) to R 19 163 806 in the 20162017 financial year
with a 89.80% spending on the Municipal Infrastructure Grant. All grant funding allocated to the Municipality with the exception
of R 1 102 195 due to poor performance on the local Government Financial Management Grant and ihe Energy Efficiency and
Demand Side Management Grant (EEDSM) have been received.

With regards to expenditure management the cost containment measures approved by Cabinet on 23 October 2013 has been
annually updated from 2014/2015 through the budget process and are complied with.

The cutstanding toans which have been taken-up to finance capital projects amount to R 110 493 384 (2016: R 155 491 448)
and the detail of this amount is contained in Note 12 and Appendix A.

2. Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and seftiement of
liabllities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the munigipality lo continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of
these is that the accounting officer continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality.
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Accounting Officer's Report

3. Subsequent events

4.  Election of Councillors

The election of councillors took place during August 2016 and a detailed ligt of councillors ang political management js
disclosed on page 1.

5. Accounting Officer

The acting accounting officer of the municipality at the date of this report is as follows;

Name Nationality
BM Mathebuyla South African
6. Auditors

Audifor General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period,




ort of the Auditor General

Rep
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017

Economic entity

Controliing entity

Figures in Rand Notes 2017 2018 2017 2016
Restateq* Restated*
Assefs
Current Assets
inventories 3 14 753 202 16 293 576 14 753 202 16 293 576
Other financial assets 4 2 908 489 2145732 2 808 489 2145 732
Operating lease asset 52 149 816 96 889 14% 816 96 889
Recsivables from exchange transactions & 220 822 809 183 289 361 220 788 581 183 252 p43
Receivabies from non-exchange 5.1 76 141 854 45691 683 76 141 854 45 691 683
transactions
Consumer debtors 7 107 035 129 117 092 212 107 035 129 117 092 212
Cash and cash equivalents 8 32 550 520 §5477 362 31 839 163 54 369 42p
454 361 904 420 086 815 453 616 234 418 941 555
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 9 149 081 753 141 940 0gp 149 081 753 141 940 opg
Property, plant and equipment 10 1580 745 984 1620 184 449 1560 691 424 1620118 989
intangible assets 11 924 601 602 790 916 838 581125
Other financial assets 4 25 174 278 20939 720 25174 278 20 939 720
1735926 914 1783 666 059 1735 864 299 1783 579 834
Total Assets 2190 288 823 2203753774 2 189 480 525 2202 521 289
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 7
Other financia liabilities 12 17 075 913 27 864 801 17 075913 27 864 801
Finance lease obligation 13 1758 832 253 825 1758 832 253 825
Payables from exchange kransactions 14 178 447 574 170 405 404 178 141 419 170 058 pe8
VAT payable 15 34713 134 31657 124 33 376 034 29 844 327
Consumer deposits 16 23129 385 23 146 904 23128 385 23 146 904
Unspent conditiona) grants and receipts 17 19 163 806 19434 127 19 163 808 19 434 127
Provisions 18 606 890 688 535 606 890 688 535
- 274 895 534 273 350 720 273 252 279 271 290 587
Non-Current Liabitities _
Other financial liabilities 12 102 417 471 127 626 647 102 417 471 127 626 647
Finance lease obligation 13 3 558 300 - 3 558 300 -
Employee benefit obligations 19 84 223 104 85763 780 84 223 104 85 763 760
Provisions 18 4 205 927 3823 570 4 205 927 3823570
194 404 802 217 213 977 194 404 802 217 213 977
Total Liabilitios 469 300 336 490 564 697 467 657 081 488 504 584
Net Assets 1720 988 487 1713189 077 1721 823 444 1714 016 825
1720 988 487 1713189 077 1721823 444 1714016 825

Accumulated surplus

* See Note 60

12
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Statement of Financial Performance
. Economic entity Controfling entity
Figures in Rand Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
Restated” Restated”
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 20 447 720 635 450 104 468 447 720 635 450 104 468
Rental of facilities and equipment . 1 644 365 1333 677 1 644 365 1333 677
Interest received {trading} 53 15 364 908 42 328 408 15 321 021 12 312 1563
Agency sernvices & 304 686 8004 170 6 304 686 8 004 170
Licences and permits 824 244 721 783 824 244 721783
Other income 2 44 847 861 43 878 617 44 716 716 33 834 159
Intorest received - investment 53 § 253 077 6 850 014 8 253 077 6 850 014
Total revenue from exchange 524 959 776 513 221 137 524 784 744 513 160 424
transactions
e —_—— e —
Rrevenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 22 80 787 849 74 146 340 80 787 848 74 146 340
Property rates - penalties imposed 22 8 157 882 5186 759 g 157 882 5 186 759
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 23 464 786 238 456 451 570 464 786 239 456 451 570
Fines, penalties and forfeits 54 43 914 170 36 035 247 43914170 36 035 247
M e A e
Total revenue from non-gxchange 597 646 140 571 819 916 507 646 140 574 819 916
transactions .
Sy ey e
Total revenue 25 1122605 916 1 085 041 053 1 122 430 884 41 084 980 340
e — e ——
Expenditure
Employee reiated costs 26 270 103 603 261 221 900 267 338 994 268 534 229
Remuneration of counciflors and board 27 23 265 242 22 048 (054 22 457 384 24 089 938
members
Administration - 7 808 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 57 426470851 - 123 180 622 126 138 849 123 126 612
ympairment loss/ reversal of impairments 29 822 923 35 542 607 g22 823 35 542 607
Finance costs 30 12 802 343 11 035120 12 802 343 11 035120
Lease rentals on operating lease 259 963 323137 - -
Debt impairment 58 58 399 127 63 863 737 58 399 127 63 863 737
Collection costs 421 407 2151 410 421 406 2 151 410
Repairs and maintenance 3 35 242 644 25 227 BOT 35 016 928 25 110 558
Bulk purchases 32 321 519 584 301 974 600 321 519 584 301 974 600
Contracted services 33 46 904 302 38 524 348 46 904 302 38 524 348
Transfers and subsidies 34 123 608 707 430 745 852 423 608 707 430 745 852
Project costs 650 836 484 890 - -
General expenses 3% g4 254 469 74 493 619 08 811 209 79 308 063
Total expenditure 1114 426 001 4 090 825 511 1114 243 766 1 091 007 074
A ————ER A
Operating surplus (deficit) 8179 915 (5 784 458) 8187128 {6 026 734)
Loss on disposal of property, ptant and 65 (923 404) (1510 073) {623 404) (1510 073)
equipment :
Fair value adjusiments 52 - (1 146 000) - (1 146 000)
Gain (loss) on disposal of stands held for 55 542 895 {478 950) 542 895 (478 ©50)
sale (inventories)
- =TTl e TR oW
(380 509} (3 135 023) (380 508) (3 135 023)

- e

* gee Note 60
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Statement of F inancial Performance

. Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Restated* Resfated*
Surplus (deficit) for the year 7 799 406 {8 919 481) 7806619 (9_1 61 757)
* See Note 60

14
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statement of Changes in Net Assets

Note Accumulated Total net
Figures in Rand : surpius assels
Economic entity
Opening balance as previously reported 1704 416 216 4704 416 216
Adjustments
Prior year adjusiments 60 17 692 345 17 692 345
Balance at 01 July 2015 as restated” 1722 108 561 1 722 108 561
Changes in net assets ‘
Surplus for the year {8 919 484) (8 919 484)
Total changes {8 919 484) (8 919 484)
Opening balance as previously reporied 1748 021 423 4 748 021 423
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 60 (34 832 342) (34 832 342)
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2016 as restated” 1713 189 081 1713 189 081
Changes in net assels
Surplus for the year 7 799 4086 7 799 406
Total changes 7 799 406 7 799 406
Balance at 30 June 2017 1720 988 487 4 720 988 487
Controlling entity
Opening balance as previously reported 1 705 486 237 1 705 486 237
Adjustments
Prior year adjusiments 60 17 692 345 17 692 345
Balance at 01 July 2015 as restated” 1723178 682 1723178 582
Changes in net assels
surplus for the year {9 161 757) (9161 757)
Total changes {0 161 757) (9161 757)
Opening balance as previously reported 1748971 838 1748 971 838
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 60 (34 955 013) (34 955 013)
Restated” Balance at 01 July 2016 as restated” : 1714 016 825 1714 016 825
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 7 806 619 7 806 619
Total changes 7 806 619 7 806 619

Balance at 30 June 2017 1721823 444 1721823 444

* See Note 60
16
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Cash Fiow Statement

Economic entity

Controliing enfity

Figures in Rand Notes 2017 2018 2017 2016
Restated* : Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Taxation 69 332 448 64 262 938 69 332 445 64 262 939
Sale of goods and services 508 843 524 497 550 641 508 665 495 497 523 861
Grants 477 979 917 428 826 506 477 879 917 428 926 508
Interest income 53 8 253 077 6 850 014 8 253 077 6 850 014

1064 408 964 997 580 099 1 064 230 934 997 563 320
Paynments
Employee costs (294 900 497) (273 830 994) (201 337 034) (270 185 229)
Suppliers (667 740 321) {629 826 574) {670 754 666) (634 126 361)
Finance costs 30 (12 358 859) {10 704 593) (12 358 859) (10 704 593)
Transfer of property, plant and equipment 10 54 400 869 94 136 380 54 400 869 94 136 380
{non-cash item) _

(920 616 808) (820 225 781) (920 049 590) {820 879 803)

Net cash fiows from operating activities 36 143 792 156 177 364 318 144 181 244 176 683 517
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (122 755 322) (175 957 528) (122 747 823) (175 957 528)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 10 184 go8 2 - 184 998 1
eguipment
Purchase of inyestment_property (7 141 753) (6 700 000) (7 141 753) (6 700 00D)
Purchase of cther intangible assets 11 (631 368) (542 641) (631 368) (542 641)
Proceeds from sale of financial assels (4 997 314) (14 044 173) (4 997 314) (14 044 173)
Net cash flows from investing activities (135 340 759) {197 244 340) (135 333 260) (197 244 341)
Cash flows from financing activities
Long term liabilities - 61 300 000 - &1 300 000
Repayment of vther financial liabilities (35 998 0B4) (13 430 849) {35998 084) (13 439 B48)
Finance lease payments 4619 823 {907 405) 4619 823 (907 405)
Net cash flows from financing activities {31 378 241) 46952 745 {31 378 241) 46 952 746
Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash (22 926 843) 27072724 (22 530 257) 26 391 922
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 55 477 362 28 404 837 54 369 420 27 977 498
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 8 32 550 519 55 477 361 31 839 183 54 369 420
the year
*.See Note 60
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual

Economic entity

statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange

transactions

Service charges 518 881 261 . 518881261 447720635 (71 160 626)

Rental of facilities and equipment 1072100 - 1072100 1 644 365 572 265

interest received (trading) 12 000 000 . 12000000 15364 908 3364 908

Agency services 49 264 291 . 49264291 6304686 (42959 605)

Licences and permits 851 000 - 651 000 824 244 173 244

Other income 8 465 046 - 8465046 44847861 36 382 815

Interest received - investment 2101 000 - 2101 000 8§ 253 077 6 152 077

Total revenue from exchange 592 434 698 . 502434698 524959776 {67 474 922)

transactions

Revenue from non-exchange

transactions

Taxation revenue

Property rates 72 000 000 . 72000000 80787 849 8 787 848

Property rates - penalties imposed 5 000 000 - 5 000 000 8 157 882 3157882

Transfer revenue '

Government grants & subsidies 416607 004  B2695 586 499302500 464 786 239 (34 606 361)

Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 3805 136 - 3805136 43014170 40109034

Total revenue from non-exchange 497 502 140 82685586 580 107 726 597 646 140 17448414
transactions

Total revenue 1080 936 838 82695586 1172632 424 1122 605916 (50 026 508)
Expenditure

Personnel {298 110 576) 507 574 (297 603002) (270 4103 603) 27 499 399

Remuneralion of councillers {23 035 604) - (23 035604) (23 265242) (229 638)
Depreciation and amortisation (128 783 958) 30000 (128753959) (126170851 2 583 108

impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (822 923) {822 923)
impairments

Finance costs (14 876 264} 12578 (14 863 686) (12 802 343) 2061343

Lease rentals on operating lease (312 145) 35638 (276 508) {259 963) 16 543

Debt impairment (24 141 000) . (24141 000) (58 398 127) (34 258 127)
Collection costs (635 000) (179 500) (814 500) (421 406) 393 084

Repairs and maintenance (313265 956) (2148 117) (33 475 073) (35 242 644) {1 767 571)
Bulk purchases (332 500 000) {332 500 000) (321 519 584) 10 980 416

Contracied Services {48 213 872) (891 000) (40 104 872) (46904302) 2 200 570

Transfers and Subsidies (35673499) (9495 586) (45169 085) (123 608 707) (78439622)
General Expenses (102233299) 2761 728 (99 4T1571) (94 254 472) 5217 099

Project costs {400 000) (222 816) (622 816) (650 836) (28 020)
Total expenditure 11040 241 174) (9 680 500)1 049 831 674)(1 114 426 003) (64 594 329)
Operating surplus 40695 664 73105086 122800750 8179913 (114 620 B37)
Loss on disposal of assets and - 2129 450 - 2129 450 (023 404) (3052 854)
liabilities

17
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Reference

Adjustments Final Budget Actyal amounts Difference
on comparab)e between final

basis budget ang
Figures in Rang ' actual
Gain on Non-current assets hejq for - - - 542 ggs 542 895
sale or disposal groups .
2129 450 - 2129 450 {380 509) {2 509 959)
Surplus before taxation 51825114 73 105086 124 930 200 7 799 404 (117 130 7986}
Actual Amount on Comparable 51825114 3 105086 124939 200 7799 404 {117 130 796)
Basis as Presented in the Budget

and Actual Comparative Statement
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arison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budgei on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actu erence Reference
an 1

budget comparable petween final
basis pudaet an

Figures in Rand actual

Statement of Financial Position

hssels

Current Assets -

Inventories 10 640 273 49849273 14753 202 (4896 o71)

Other financial assets 1 683 054 - 1683 054 2 908 489 4 226 435

Operating lease asset 110 161 - 110 161 149 816 39 65%

Receivables from exchang® 178 400 874 478400974 220822 goo 42421 926

transactions .

Receivables from non-exchange 2 604 326 - 2604326 76141 g5 13 537 528

transactions

Consumer deblors 113 328 361 412328361 107 035 429 (6293 232)

Cagh and cash equivalents 42 342 983 10 383 539 22726522 32 550 520 9 623 998

328 119 132 40 383 539 338 502 671 454 361 909 415 859 238

Non-Current Assets

investment property 164 945 000 464945000 149 081 753 (15863 247)

property, piant and equipment 1 829 845 610 g7 003822 1 916 939 432 1 560 745 os4 (356193 448)

intangible assets 742 384 - 742 384 924 901 182 617

Other financial assets 15 388 328 45388328 25174 276 9785948
2 010 921 322 87093822 2 098 015 144 1 735 926 914 (362 088 230)

Total Assets 2 339 040 454 o7 477 361 2436 £17 815 2190 288 823 (246 226 992)

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 45 003 794 _ 15903794 17 075 913 1472119

Finance lease obligation - - - 1 758 832 1758 832

Payables from exchange transactions 140610729 _ 140610729 178 447 574 37 836 845

VAT payable 30 823 249 " 3ps23240 34713134 3889 885

Consumer deposits 24 132333 . 24132333 23 129385 (1 002 948)

Unspent conditional grants and 15 000 000 (4 115 00Q) 10885000 19163 BO6B 8 276 806

receipts

Provisions gos800 2 189 278)

2 796 168 - 2796 168
229 266 273 (4115 000y 225 154 273 274 go5 534 A9 744 261

Non-Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 110 761 302 . 1076t 302 102417 471 (6343 831)
Finance lease obligation 3 399 522 - 3 399 522 3 558 300 158 778
Employee benefit obligations 85 758 570 " p5758570 84223 104 (1538 466)
Provisions . 4205927 - 4 205 927 4 205 927 -
204 125 a - 204125 324 194 404 802 (9720 519)
Total Liabilities 433 391 594 {4116 o0n) 429 276 594 469 300 336 40 023 742,
Net Assets 1 905 648 gs0 101 592 361 2 007 241 221 4 720 988 487 (286 252 734)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Acerual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Fipal Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to Owners
of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated surpius 1905648 860 101 592 361 2007 241 221 9 799 988 487 (286 252 734)
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statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Taxation 65 450 000 66450000 69 332446 3 882 446

Sale of goods and services 492 322 838 . 492322838 508843524 16 520 686

Grants 416697000 65000000 481697 000 477079917  (3717083)

Interest income 10 501 000 10501000  g253077 (2247823
o84 070 838 65 000 000 1 048 970 838 1 064 408 964 14438126

Payments

Employee costs (296 973 541) (206 973 541) (204 909 497) 2064 044

Suppliers {553 296 754) {553 296 754) (667 749 321} (114 452 567)

Finance costs {14 876 264) (14 876 264) (12 358 859) 2 517 405

Other cash item - - . 4400868 54 400 8§69
{865 146 559) - (865 146 559) {920 616 808) (55 470 249)

Net cash flows from operating 410 B24 279 65000000 184 824 279 143792156 (41 032 123)

activities

Additions to property, plant and (129 988 000) (120 988 000) (122755 322) 7 232 678

equiprment

Transfer from work in progress 2 005 888 - 2 005 888 {2 005 §88)

Praceeds on disposal of property, - - - 184 088 184 998

plant and equipment

Loss from disposal of property, plant (8 920 0D0) (6 920 000} - 6 920 000

and equipment

Additions to investment property (3000000) (1435 opoy (4438 600} (7 141 753) {2 706 753)

Additions of intangible assets {700 000) - (700 000) {631 268) 68 632

Purchase of other financial assets - - - (4097 314) (4 997 314)

Net cash flows from investing {138 602 112) {1 435 000) (140 037 112) (135 340 758) 4 696 353

activities

Net movement on other financial g 121161 - 8121 161 (8 121 181)

liabilities

Repayment of other fiabilities - - - (35008084) (35 998 064)

Finance lease payments - - - 4619823 4619823

Net cash fiow from financing activitles 8121 161 - 8121161 (31378 241) (39 499 402)

Cash and cash equivalents at the {10 656 672) {22 093 822) (32750 494) (22926 843) 9 823 651

heginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the 23000000 32477 361 55477 361 55477 362 1

beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the 12 343328 10383 539 22726 867 32 650 519 g 823 652

end of the year

21



sale or disposal groups

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts  Differance Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Fligures in Rand actual
Controlling enfity
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 518 881 261 - 518881261 447 720635 (71160 626) Note 51
Rental of facilities ang equipment 1072100 - 1072100 1 644 365 572265  Note 51
interest received - outstanding 12 000 00D - 12000000 45 321 021 3321 021
receivables
Income from agency services 49 264 291 - 48264 2099 6304686 (42959 605) Note 51
Licences and permits 651 000 - 651 000 824 244 173244 nNote 51
Other income 8465 046 - 8465046 44 7¢¢ 716 36251 670 Note 51
Interest received - external investment 2101 000 - 2101 000 8 253 077 6162077  pote 51
Total revenue from exchange 592 434 6o -~ 592434 gog 524 784 744 (67 649 954)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 72 000 Qo0 - 72000000 gj gy 849 8787849  Ngie 59
Property rates - penalties imposed 5 000 000 - 5000 000 8 157 882 3187882 ot 51
Transfer revenuye
Government grants ang subsidies 416697004 82 695 585 499 392590 4p4 786239 . (34 606 351) Note 51
Fines ‘ 3 805 136 - 3805136 43044 170 40109034  pygpe 51
Total revenue from non-exchange 497 502 140 82 695 586 580 197 726 597 646 140 17 448 414
transactions _
Total revenue 1089936838 go 695 586 1172632 424 1122 430 884 {50 201 540)
Expenditure
Employee cost (293 508 270) - (293 508 270) (267 338 994) 26 169 276 Note 51
Remuneration of councillors {23 035 604) - (22 035 604) (22 457 384) 578 220
Depreciation and amortisation (128 674 868) - (128 674 868) (126 138849) 2538 019
Impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (822 923) (822923) oo 54
impairments
Finance costs (14 853 686) - {14853 686) (12802343) 2051343 Note 51
Debt impairment (24 141 0o0) - {24141 opo) (58 399 127). (34 258 127} Note 51
Collection costs (200 000) - (200 00 (421 408) (221 406)  Note 54
Repairs and maintenance (31214273) (2 944 000) (33 255 273) (35018928) (1763 655)  Note 51
Bulk purchases (332 500 00p) . - (332500 000) (321519 584) 10 980 415 Note 51
Contracled services (48 213 872) (891000) (49 104 872) (46 gp4 302) 2200 570 :
Transfer and subsigies paid (35673499) (9495 586) (45 169 085) (123808 707) (78439 622}  Note 59
General Expenses (108 187 317) 2932000 (10525531 7). {98 811 200) 6444 108 :
Total expenditure . (1 040 202 389) (9495 586)(1 049 607 975)/1 114 243 756) (64 545 781)
Operating surplus 49734449 73 2pp 000 122934 439 8187128 (114 747 321)
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets 2 129 450 - 2129 450 {923404) (3052 854)  Noto 59
Gain on non-current assets held for - - - 542 gos5 542895  Noge 54
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e e e =

statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

- —
Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts pifference Reference
0

budget n comparable petween final

. basis pudget and

Figures in Rand - : actual
2129 A50 - 2 129 460 (380 509) {2 509 959)

surplus before taxation 51863889 73 200 000 126063 899 7 806 618 {117 257 280)

Actual Amount on Comparable 51863809 73 200 000 125063 899 7806618 (117 257 280)

Basis as Presented in the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement




Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidateg Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budgét on Accrual Basig

Approved Adjustments  Finaf Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget oh comparable between fina|
basis budget and
Figures in Rand ‘ actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 19 649 273 - 19649273 1495, 202 (4896071) Npte 51
Other financial assets 1683 054 - 1683 054 2908 489 1225435  Npe 51
Operating lease asset 110 161 - 110 161 149 816 39 655
Receivables from exchange 178 400 974 - 178400974 570 75 581 42387607  Note 51
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange 2604 326 - 2604326 75141854 73 537528  Note 59
transactions
Consumer debtors 113 328 361 - 113328361 407 035 129 (6283232) Ny 59
Cash and cash equivalents 12342083 10383539 22726522 31839 163 9112841 Noge 59
328119 132 10383 539 338 502671 453 616 234 115 113 563
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 164 945 000 = 164945000 149 0g1 753 (15 863247)  pote 59
Property, plant and equipment 1829845610 87093 822 1 916 930 432 1560601424 (356 248 008) Note 51
Intangible assets 742 384 - 742 384 916 838 174454  Note 59
Other financial assets 15 388 328 - 15388328 2547427 97850848 oo 51
2010921 322 87 093 822 2 pog 015144 1 735 864 201 {362 150 853)
Total Assets 2 339 040 454 97 477 361 2 436 517 815 2189 480 525 {247 037 290)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 15 903 7084 - 15803784 47475 913 1172119
Finance lease obligation - - - 1758 832 1758832  nNote 59
Payables from exchange transactions 140610 728 - 140810729 475141419 37530 680
VAT payable 30 823 249 - 30823249 33375034 2 552 785
Consumer deposits 24132 333 - 24132333 33439385 (1 002 948)
Unspent conditional grants and 15000000 (4115 000) 10885000 1g 163 806 8278808  Note 51
receipts
Provisions 2796 168 - 2796 168 S06890  (2189278)  pore 59
229 266 273 (4 115000) 225 151 273 273252 279 48 101 006
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 110 761 302 - 110769302 192 417 474 (8343831)  Npte 54
Finance iease obligation 3399 522 - 3399 522 3 558 300 158 778
Employee benefit obligations 85 758 570 - B6758570 g40q 104 (1535466) pgie 59
Provisions 4 205 927 - 4 205 927 4205 927 -
204 125 321 - 204128 321 194 404 802 (% 720 519)
Total Liabilities 433 391 594 (4115000) 420 27¢ 594 467 657 081 38 380 487
Net Assets 1905648 860 101 592 361 2 007 241 221 1721823 444 (285 417 777)
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Statement of Compatison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference - Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Net Assets
Net Assets Atiributable to Owners
of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus 1 805 648 860 101 592 361 2007 241 221 1721 823 444 (285417 777)  Note 51
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Reference
budgst on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Cash Flow Statement
Cash fiows from operating activities
Recelpts
Taxation revenue 65 450 000 - 65450000 69332445 3882445 e 51
Sale of goods and services 492 322 838 - 492322838 508665405 16 342 657 Note 51
Grants 416897000 65000000 481697000 477 979 917 (3 717 083)
Interest income 10 501 000 - 10501000 8253077 {2247 923) Note 51
984 970 838 65 000 000 1 049 970 838 1054 230 934 14 260 096

Payments
Employee costs (296 973 541) - (296 973 541) (291 337 034) 5636507  Note 51
Suppliers {553 296 754) - {553 296 754) (g7 754 666) (117457 912)  Note 51
Finance costs {14 876 264) - {14876264) (12358 859) 2517405  wNote 51
Transfer of property, piant and - - - 54400869 54400869  Note 51
equipment ,

(865 146 559) - {865 146 559) (920 048 620) (54 903 131)
Net cash flows from opei‘ating 119824279 65000 000 184824279 144 181 244 (40643 035)
activities
Cash flows from Investing activities
Additions {o property, plant and (129988 000) (85 658 822) (215 646 822) (122747 823) 92898998  Note 51
equipment - ‘ ' )
Transfers from Work in Progress 2 005 888 - 2005 888 - {2005 8389)
Proceeds on disposal of property, - - - 184 998 184 998  wNpte 51
plant and equipment _
Loss on disposal of property, plantand (6 920 00n) - (6920 000) - 6 920 000
equipment
Additions to investment property (3000000) (1435000) (4 435 000) (7141753) (2706 753) Note 59
Additions of other infangible assets (700 000) - (700 £00) {631 368) 68 632
Additions to other financial assets - - T [4997314) (4997 314)  Ngte 51
Net cash flows from investing (138 602112) (87 093 827) (225695 934) (135 333 260) 90 362 674
activities .
Cash fiows from financing activities _
Net movement on other financial 8 121 161 - 8121161 - {(8121161) Note 59
liabilities
Repayment of other financial liabilities - - - (35998064) (35998064) Note 519
Finance léase payments - - - 4619 823 4619823  Npte 51
Net cash flows from financing 8121161 - B121181 (31378 241) (39 499 402)
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and (10656 672) (22 093 822) (32760494} (22530 257) 10220237  Noie 51
cash equivalents )
Cash and cash equivalents at the 23000000 32477361 55477361 542359 420 (1107 941)  Note 51
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the 12343328 10383639 22726 867 31 839 163 9112 296

end of the year
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 58 of 2003).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statemenis are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the economic
enfity.

1.2 Rounding
All financial figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand.
1.3 Going concern assumption

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation thal the economic entity will
continue to operate as a going concem for at least the next 12 months.

1.4 Significantjudgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Aciual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the consolidated financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables and loans and receivables

The economic entity assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting
perlod. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables s calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the

_ estimated loss emergence period.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or nel realisable value. Management have made estimates of
the selling price and direct cost 1o sell on certain inventory items. The wiite down is included in the operation surplus note.

Falr value estimation

The carrying vaiue less impairment provision of {rade receivables and payables are assumed lo approximate their fair values,
The fair value of financial lizbilities for disclosure purposes Is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the

current market interest rate that is available to the economic entity for similar financial instruments.

Subsequent to initial measurement, investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment property reflects
market conditions at the reporting date, defermined by the external valuator.
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions.

independent of cash flows of other assets and fiabilities. if there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expectad future cash flows used to determine the value in
use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time, They are significantly
affected by a number of factors including preduction estimates, supply demand, together with economic factors such as

inflation interest and economic conditions.
Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additionai disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 18 - Provisions,

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post retirament obligation depen'ds ©on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumplions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.

Othier key assumptions for pension obligations are based on cuirent market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in
Note 19.

Effective interest rate
The economic entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an Impairment loss is fecognised in surplus and deficlt when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognifion.
1.5 Investment property
Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:

. use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

. administrative purposes, or

*  sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property s property held for use in the production er supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. ’

are associated with the investment property will flow 1o the economic entity, and the cost or fair value of the investment

Investment preperty Is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property, if a
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised,

28




Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

4.5 Investment property (continued)

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects matket conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the petiod in which it arises.

if the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not refiably determinable but expects
the fair value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is compiete, it measures that investment property
under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable of construction is completed {whichever is
earlier). If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment property under
construction) is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the entity measures that investment properfy using the cost
mode) (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the investment praperty is then
assumed to be zero. The entity applies the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment) until
disposal of the investment property.

Once the enfity becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has
previously been measured at cost, it measures that property atits fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, it
is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost model
in accordance with the accounting policy on Properfy, plant and equipment.

Derecognition

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit of service potential are expected from its disposal. ’

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposai of investment property is the difference petween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assetand is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus of deficit
when the compensation becomes receivable.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangibie non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, of for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
» itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the economic
entity; and
+  the costof the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost Is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an ilem of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for @ non-monetary asset or menetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it, If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipmenit, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligafion arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of-an item of properly, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

Iltems such as sbare‘parls. standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the deflnition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition crileria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the ltem of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Properiy, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses except for X, X and X
which Is carrled at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, .

Properly, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation jess any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the cartying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be delermined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaluation equals its revalued amount.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumujated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an assef's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recoghised in surplus or deficit. :

respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment Is transferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset,

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value, '

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revajued amount, being the fair vaiue at the date of revajuation Jess any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period,
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit fo the extent that it reverses & revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying
The decrease is debited in revaluatio

of that asset.

amount, as a resultof a
n surplus to the extent

revaluation, is recognise
of any credit balance existing in the re

The useful Yives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

d in surpius or deficit in the current period.
valuation surplus in respect

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Infrastructure Straight line

»  Roads and paving 10 -30
e  Pedestrian malls 20

«  Electricity 10-30
«  Water 15-20
«  Sewage 15-20
+«  Housing 30
Community Straight line

*  improvements 30

. Recreational facilities 20

. Security . 3-5
Other assels Straight line

»  Buildings 30

«  Specialist vehicles 20

. Other vehicles 5-7

«  Office equipment ) 3-5

+  Furniture and fittings 7-10

+«  Watercraft 15

. Bins and containers 5-10

. Specialised plant and equipment 515

.  Otheritems of plant and equipment 5

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the economic entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each
reporiing date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
penefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the ‘method is changed to reflect the changed patiern. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the economic entity expectations
about the residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication
exists, the economic entity revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period Is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is inciuded in the carrying amount of
another assel.

items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there aré no further economic
nenefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arlsing from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The economic entity separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain Property, plant and equipment in the netes fo the
financial statements (see note )-

The economic entity discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financlal statements {(see note )

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either: , .

. is separable, ie. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchaniged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardiess of
whether the entity intends to do so; or '

. afises from binding arrangements {including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the €conomic entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract,
An intangible asset is recognised when:
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are atiributable to the asset will
flow to the economic entity; and ’
. the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably,

The economic entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service pbotential using reasonable and
supporiable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a nen-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date. '

Expenditure on research {or on the research phase of an inlernal_project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses,
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

item Usefid life
Computer sofiware 3-5 years
Website development 5 years

The economic entity discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note )

Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:;
. on disposal; or
*  when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible assets is includled in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised {unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).
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1.8 Financial instruments -

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one éntity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial ligbility is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus of minus the cumulative amoriisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturlty amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recoghised financial asset or financial fiability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financia! liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of aliocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exacily discounts esfimated future cash payments or receipts through the expecled life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter pericd to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating ihe effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all coniractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid of received between parties 10 the contract that are an integral patt of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transaciions}, transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is @ presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financia) instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial insirument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
. cash,
. a residual interest of another entity; or
. a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial assel from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable i the entity.

A financial tiability is any liability thal is a contractual obligation to:

s deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; of

+  exchange financial assets or financial liabiliies under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflecied on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Consumer debtors Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivables from exchange fransactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets Financial assel measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Other financial liabilities . Financial liability measured at amartised cost

_ Finance lease obligation Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cosl
Consumer depasits Financia! liability measured at amortised cost
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1.8 Financlal instruments (continued)
Initial recognition

The municipality recognises a financial asset ot a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes
a panty fo the contractual provisions of the instrument. S

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The municipality measures a financial asset and financial liabiiity initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or
a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financlal liabifities

The municipality measures all financial assets and financial liabllities after initial recognition using the following categories:
. Financial instruments at fair value.
= Financial instruments at amortised cost.
. Financial instruments at cost,

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review,
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is 1o establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm'’s length exchange mofivated by normal operating
considerations, Valuation techniques include using recent arm'’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cagh flow

and is consistent wilh accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments, Periodically, a economic entity
calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the
same instrument {i.e, without modification or fepackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Reclassification

The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
*  combined instrument that Is required to be measured at fair value; or
. an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification,

If fair value can no lenger be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost, The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes the cost.

¥ a reliable measure becomes available for an invesiment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from
cost to fair value, :

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit, :

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or Joss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

The municipality assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financiai assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus of
deficit.

If, In a subsequent peried, the amount of the impairment ioss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event oceurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incutred on an investment in & residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured refiably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash fiows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a simifar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The municipality derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The municipality derecognises a financial asset only when:

.  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

«  the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or

. the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to anather party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the assetin its
entirely to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
. derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the righis or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recoghised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognilion in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recagnise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. if the
fee to be received Is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair vaiue. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation
for the servicing, a servicing assetis recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the targer financial asset.

If as a result of a transfer, & financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial
fiabillty or servicing liabliity at fair value. :

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

that is derecognised; based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer, For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues o be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surpius or deficit,

If a transfer does not resutt in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses
are offset,

Financlal liabilitles

The municipality removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financjal position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liabiiity is recognised, Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financia liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surpius or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or-assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers). ’

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a cemponent that is a financiat liability is fecognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component thal is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicable] relating to distributions to
holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial tizbility are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or {o realise the asset and setfle the liahility simultanecusly.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not quailfy for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.9 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers Substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership, A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
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1.9 Leases (continued)

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the Jeased property o, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The correspending liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in caiculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the municipality's incremental
borrowing rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding ligbility. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant petiodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basls over the lease term.

initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carmrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the jease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-ine basis.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recoghised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a siraight-line basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense oh a stralght-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.10 Inventories

Inventories consist of work in progress, consumables and finished goods. Inventory is measured at lower of cost, and net
realisable value or current replacement cost. Whete it is held for distribution or consumption at no charge or for a nominal
amount, inventories are valued at cost.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, cosis of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Redundant and slow moving inventories are identified and written down with
regard to their cost. Consumables are written down according to their age, condition and utility.

Stands available for sale during the next 12 months are recognised as inventory.

1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assels held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-crientated entlty, it generates a commercial
return.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
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1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets {continued)
Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expecled to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the economic entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the economic entity applies the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. ‘

Basis for estimates of future cash flows

In measuring value in use the economic entity:

. base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate
of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset Greater weight is given
10 external evidence;

*  base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any estimated
future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring’s or from impraving or enhancing the
assef's performance. Projections based on these budgetsfforecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unless a
longer period can be justified; and

*  eslimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by exirapolating the
projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,
unless a higher rate can be justified.

Composition of estimates of future cash flows

Estimates of future cash flows include:

¢ projections of cash inflows from the conlinuirig use of the asset;

*  projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the
asset (incliding cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis, fo the asset; and '

= netcash fiows, if any, to be received {or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.

Estimates of future cash fiows exclude:
*  cashinflows or outflows from financing activities; and
*  income fax receipts or payments.

The estimate of net cash flows to be received {or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount that
the economic entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length fransaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted.

Recognition and measurement (individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or defigit,

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it
relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation {amartisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset'’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets {continued)
Cash-generating units

f there is any Indication thal an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. if it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the Individual asset, the economic eniity determines the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assels, that asset or group of assets is identified as a
cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. if the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-
generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing. the economic entity use management's best estimate of future price(s)
that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:
e the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
s the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
affected by the internal transfer pricing.

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless & change
is justified.

The carrylng amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basls consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unitis jess than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is aliocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the uniton a

pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
. its tair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
+ its value in use (if determinable), and
«  Zero.

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit.

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a propottion of the carrying amount of that non-
cash-generating assetis allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of impairment loss

The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been deiermined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss fora cash-generafing asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

~ After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, ihe depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with
the carrying amounis of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service
potential to a cash-generating unit.
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1.11 Impairment of cash—generating assets (continued) .
In allocating a reversal of an impaiment loss for 5 cash-generaﬁng unit, the carrying amount of an asset s not increased above
the lower of:
*  iis recoverable amount (if determinable): and _
*  the cariying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impaiment Ioss
been fecognised for the agset in prior periods. :

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been aliocated to the asset is allocated pro rata fo
the other assets of the unii.

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from a ca_sh-genera!ing assetto a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset
toa cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such g redesignation s appropriate,

Non-cash-generaling assels are assets other than ca_sh-generating assets,

Identification

Value in use
Value in use of non-cash~generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assefs remaining service potential,

The present valye of the remaining service potential of o non-cash-generatihg assels is determineg using the following
approach:

Denreciated replacement cost approach
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4.12 impairment of non—cash—generating assets {continued)
Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount ofa non—cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This redugtion is an impairment loss.

An impairment l0ss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of & revalued non-cash-generating agsel is treated as @ revaluation decréase.

When the amount estimated for an impairment 108S is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generaﬂng agset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises 8 liability anly to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amorlisatlon) charge for the non—cash-generating assetis
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating assel's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impalrment loss recognised in prior
petiods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods fora non—cash—generating assel is reversed.-if there has been a changé inthe
estimates used to determine the assel's recoverable service amount since the tast impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the aseet is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is @ reversal of an jmpairment loss.
The increased carying amount of an asset atiributable to 8 reversal of an jmpairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have beet determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss peen recognised for the
asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment 1058 fora non-cash-generating assetis recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss i$ recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash—generating asset
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non—cash-generaﬁng asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if any),
on a systematic pasis over its remaining useful life.

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from @ cash-generating assettoa non—cash-generating asset or froma non-cash-generating assel
toa cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence {hat such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.13 Share capital / contributed capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an economic entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.

1.14 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee penefits areé employee penefits (other than termination penefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee penefits include items such as:
»  wages, salaries and social security contributions;
. short-term compensated absences (such as paid annua! leave and paid sick loave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settied within twelve months after the end of the reporting peried in which the employee
render the related employee service; '
. ponus, Incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employee render the related service; and
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1.14 Employee benefits {continued)

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) which a municipality pays fixed é:bntributions into a
separate municipality (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligatien fo pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to the employee servicgs in the current and prior periods

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealf with as defined. contribution 'plans
where the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those afising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Defined benefit pfans
For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined _usihg the projected credit method,
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by inde'pendem atluaries separately for each plan.

Consideration is given to any event that c_ouldj impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation js
performed at an earlier date. . o

Past service costs are recognised immediéteiy to the extent that the benefits are alrsady vested, and are otherwise am'orti'sed
on a straight line basis over the average period _umii the amended benefits become vested. R

To the extent that, at the beginning of the_:ﬂ_na"nciél périod, any cumulative unrecegnised actuarial gain or loss exceeds 'le_n'-

percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets (the corridok)._

that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expetted average remaining service lives of parlicipating employees. -
Actuariz_al gains or losses within the cormidor-are not recognised. o

Gains.orzlo_sses on the curiafiment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the eniity is demonstrabiy
committed to curiaiiment or settlement.

When it is virtuglly certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to setile a defined benefit -
obligation, the right to reimbursement i recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In alj other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as pian assets, In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit
plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of
plan assets.

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and
reduction in future contributions to the plan,

1.15 Provigions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
»  the economic entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and :
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to seltle the present obligation af the
reporting date. : . :

Where the effect of time value of money Is material, the amount of a provision is the present valug of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation, o

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to
the liability.
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1.15 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected 1o be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, itis virtually cartain thal reimburgement will be received If the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimpursement is treated as a separaie asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amouni of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate, Provisions are reversed if itis
no longer probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 39.
1.16 Commitments

ltems are classified as commiiments when ah entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a falr presentation should be disciosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
+  Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for compuier or
building maintenance services); and
. Confracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities exlinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or Use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value Is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s fength transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied.
«  the economic entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
»  the economic entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective contro! over the goods sold;
»  {he amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
« - itis probabie that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
economic entity; and
« the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured refiably.
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1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued)
Rendering of services

Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption. Meters are read on & monthly basis and
revenue is recognized when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption are made monthly when meter readings have
not been performed and are based on the consumption history. The provisional estiniates of consumption are recognized

8s revenue when invoiced, Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period when
meters have been read. These adjustments are recognized as fevenue in the invoicing pericd,

Revenue arising from application of the approved 1ariff of changes in recognised when the relevant service is rendered by
applying the relevant authorised tariff. This includes the issuirig of licenses and permits,

Service charges relating fo solid waste, sanitation and sewerage are levied monthly in terms of the approved tariffs.

Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royaities and dividends or similar distributions is

recognised when:
. Itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

- municipality, and
. The‘am_ount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method.

Service fees int:lﬁ_de'd_'in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the Period during which the service is
performed. T

1.18 Revenue from nén_-e_x_chang_a' transactions

repay the amount.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recagni;_e_d asan assé_l' _is reco'gnise_d as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. - - e o

As the municipality satisfies a present obiigation recognised as liabilify in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction Tecognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

Taxes

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of taxes when the taxable event ocours and the asset recognition criteria are
met. : o
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1.48 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Resources arising from taxes satisfy the definition of an asset when the municipality controls the resources as a resultof a past
event (the taxable event) and expects to receive future economic benefits or service poiential from those resources. Resources
arising from taxes satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset when it is probable that the inflow of resources will occur and
their fair value can be reliably measured. The degree of probability attached to the inflow of resources is determined on the
basis of evidence available at the time of initial recognition, which includes, but is not limited to, disclosure of the taxable event
by the taxpayer.

The municipality analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the various taxes levied,

The Iaxable event for income tax is the eaming of assessable income during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for value added tax is the undertaking of taxable activity during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for customs duty is the movement of dutiable goods of services across the customs boundary.

The taxable event for estate duty is the death of a person owning taxable property.

The taxable event for property tax is the passing of the date on which the tax s levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, if
the tax is levied on a periodic basis.

Taxation revenue is determined at a gross amount. It is not reduced for expenses paid through the tax system.
Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The municipality recognises an assel in respect of transfers when the transferred resources maet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognifion as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfles the criteria for recognition
as an asset.

Assets arising from fines are measured ai the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality.
Where the municipality collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.
Beguests

Bequests thai satisfy the definition of an assetare recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow fo the municipality, and the fair value of the assets can e measured reliably.

Gifts and donations, including goods In-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.19 Borrowing costs

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to fink the

borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current.
Borrowing costs are recoghised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.20 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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2, New standards and interpretations
21 Standargs and interpretations ot yet efiective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been Published and ara mandatory for the economic entfity's accounting
periods beglnning on or after 01 July 2017 or later petiods but are not yet effective or relevant to jis operations:

GRAP 34: Separate Financia) Statements

It furthermore covers Definitions, Preparation of separate financia| statements, Disclosure, Transitiona) provisions and
Effective date,

The effective date of the standarg js not yet set by the Minister of Finance,

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until sych time as it becomes applicable to the
eConomic entity's Operations,

The impact of this standard jg currently being assessed,
GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements

The objective of this Standard is to estabijsh principles for the Presentation ang Preparation of consolidategd financja)
stalements when an entity controls pne Or more other entilies.

To meet this objective, the Standarg;
. requires an entity (the controlling entity) that controlg one or more other entitiag (controlled entities) to present
consolidated financial Statements:;
*  defines the principle of control, and establishes control as the basijs for consolidation;
Mmust consolidate that entity; .
sels out the accounting requirements for the Preparation of consolidated financia) stalements; ang
*  defines an investrment entity and sets out an exception to consolidating particular controlled entitigs of an
investment entity. ‘

it furthermore covers Definitions, Control, Accounting fequirements, Investment entities: Fair vajye Tequirement,
Transitiona) Provisions angd Effective date,

The effective date of the standarg ig not yet set by the Minister of Finance,

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard untjt such time as jt becomes applicable 1o the
economic entity's operations,

The impact of this sfandard jg currently being assessed.
GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The cbjective of this Standard js tp prescribe the accounting for investments in associates and Joint ventures and to set oyt
the requirements for the appi

appiication of the equity method when accounfing for investments in assoclates and Joint ventures,

It furthermore covers Definitions, Significant influence, Equity method, Application of the equity method, Separate financia)
statements, Transitional Provisions ang Effective date,

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance,

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until sych time as it becomes applicable to the
economic entity's operations. .

Itis unlikely that the siandard will have g mateftial impact on the economic entity's Conhsoiidated finangjai sfatementis,
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2. New standards and interpretations (cont‘mued)
GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements

The objective of this Standard s to establish principles for financlal reporting by entities that have an interest in
arrangements that are controlled jointy {i.e. joint arrangements).

To meet this objective, the Standard defines joint control and requires an entity thatis 2 partyto 2 joint arrangement to
determine the type of joint arrangement In which it is involved by assessing its rights and obligations and to account for
those rights and obligations In accordance with that type of joint arrangement. :

it furthermore covers Definitions, Joint arrangements, Financial statements and parties to 8 joint arrangement, Separate
financial statements, Transitional provisions and Effective date.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoptidn of the standard until such time as it pecomes applicable to the
economic entity's operations.

Itis uniikely that the standard will have 2 material impact on the economic entity's consolidated financial statements.
GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The objective of this Standard is to require an enfity to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements fo
evaluate:
. the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in controlled entities, unconsolidated controlled enfities, joint
arrangements and associates, and structured entities that are not consolidated; and
. the effects of those interesis on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

|t furthermore covers Definitions, Disclosing information about interests in other entities, significant ]udgements and
assumptions, Investment entity status, Interests in controited entities, interests in joint arrangements and associates,
Interests in structured entities that are nof consolidated, Non-qualitative ownership interests, Controlling interests acouired
with the intention of disposal, Transitional provisions and Effective date. o

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the
economic entity's operations.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
IGRAP 18: Interpretation of the standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAFP applies {0 the initial recognition and derecognition of land in an entity's
financial statements. 1t 8ls0 considers joint control of land by mofe than one entity.

\When an entity concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP, it applies the applicable siandard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on Inventories, Investment Propery {GRAP
16), Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) oF Heritage Assets. As this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does
not apply to the classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentat'lon and disclosure requirements of land, the
entity applies the applicable standard of GRAP to account for the land once control of the land has been determined. An
entity also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derecoghition of land when it conciudes that it does not control
the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP.

In accordance with the principles in the Standards of GRAP, bulldings and other structures on the land are accounted for
separately. These assels are accounted for separately as the future econamic benefits or service potential embodied in the

land differs from those included in buildings and other structures. The recoghition and derecognition of buildings and other
structures are not addressed in \his Interpretation of the standards of GRAP.

The effective date of the interpretation is for years heginning on of after 01 April 2019.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation until such time as it becomes applicable to the
economic entity’s operations.
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2, New standards and interpretations (continued}
The impact of this interpretation is currently being assessed,
GRAP 12 (as amended 2016): Inventories

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Inventories resulted from inconsistencies in measurement réquirements In GRAP
23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs, Other changes resyited
from cthanges made to IPSAS 12 on Inventorieg (IPSAS 12) as a resuit of the IPSASB's Improvements to IPSASs 2015
issued in March 2018,

The most significarit changes to the Standard are:
*  General Impravements: To clarify the treatm_ent of fransaction Costs and other costs incurred on assefs acquired

. IPSASE amendments: To align terminology in GRAP 12 with that in IPSAS 12 The t:erm “ammunition® in IPSAS
military invento i ises j

The effective date of the amendment is for vears beginning On or after 01 April 2018.

The economie entity does rot envisage the adoption of the amendment untij such time a5 it becomes applicable to the
ecenomic entity's operations. )

The impact of this amendment is éurrent!y being assessed.
GRAP 1§ {as amendeq 2016): Investment Property

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Investment Property resulted from editoriai changes to the original text and
inconsis‘tencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 ang other assel-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the
treatment of transaction costs, Other thanges resulteq from changes made 1o IAS 40 on Investment Praperty (1S 40) as a
fesult of the 1ASB's amendments op Annual Improvements 1o IFRSs 2011 — 209 3 Cycle issued jn December 2013,

The most significant changes fo the Standard are:

-*  General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired
in non-exchange transactions to be in line with the Principle in GRAP 23 {paragraph -12); and To ciarify the
measurement principle when assefs may be acquired in exchange for g n'on-monetary asset or assets, or 4
Ccombination of moenetary and fon-monetary assets,

*  JASB amendmenis: To clarify the fnterrelationship betwsen the Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions
between Entities Not under Common Contrei and Investment Property when classifying investment Property or
owner-occupied breperty,

The effective date df the amendment is for years beginning on or after g1 April 2018,

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment untii sych time as jt becomes applicabie fo the
€conomic entity's cperations, .

The impact of this amendment jg currently being assessed.

GRAP 17 (as amended 2016): Property, Plant and Equipment

The most significant changes to the Standard are:

*  General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction cogts and other costs incurred on assels acquireq
in non-exchange transactions to pe In line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph 12); and To clarify the
measurement principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for 3 non-monetary agset or assets, or 5
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets,
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

+ IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation mathodology of the carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation when an item of property, plant, and equipment is revalued; To clarify acceptable methods of
depreciating assets; To align terminology in GRAP 17 with that in IPSAS 47. The term sgpecialist military

equipment’ in IPSAS 17 was replaced with the term "weapon systems” and provides 2 description of what it
comprises in accordance with Government Finance Statistics terminology: and To define 2 bearer plant and
include bearel plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the produce growing on pearer plants will remain within
the scope of GRAP 27.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on of after 01 April 2018.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment until such time as it becomes applicable to the
economic entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.
GRAP 18 (as amended 2016} segment Reporting

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on segment Reporting resulted from editorial and other changes to the original text
have been made to ensure consistency with other Standards of G

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
. General improvements: An appendix with ilustrative segment disclosures has peen deleted from the Standard as
the National Treasury has issued complete examples as part of its implementation guidance.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on of after 01 April 2018

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the
econommic entity's operations.

Tne impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.

GRAP 21 (a5 amended 2016): impairment of non—cash-generating assels

Amendments to the Standard of GRAF on impairment of Non-cash Generating Assels resulted from changes made to
IPSAS 21 0n impairment of Non-Cash—Generating Assets (IPSAS 21yasa result of the |PSASB's impairment of Revalued
Assets issued In March 2016.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
. S

IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with lPSASs to reflect the |PSASB's

recent decision on the impairment of revalued assets.
The effective date of the amendment is for years peginning o of after 01 April 2018.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment until such fime as it becomes applicable to the
£conomic entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being sssessed.
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GRAP 25 {as amendeq 2016): Impairmen of cash-génerating assets
Amendments Changes to the Siandarg of GRAP on Impairment of Cash Generaﬁng Assets resyiteq from changes magle to
n

IPSAS 25 ¢ Impaiment of Cash-Generating Assels {IPSAS 26) as a result of the IPSASE’s Impairment of Revalyeg
Assets issyeq in March 2016,

The economic entity does not ehvisage the adoption of the ahendmen! untif such timg &s it becomes applicable to the
e€conomic entity's Operations,

The impact of this amendment jg Currentiy being assesseq,
GRAP 31 {as amengag 2016); Intangible Assets

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Intangible Assets resulted fropm inco_nsistencies in measurement requirements in

23 and other asset-rejated Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction Costs. Other thanges
resulted from changes made to IPSAS 31on Intangible Assets {IPSAS 31 ) as a resypt of the IPSASB's lmp’ro_vements fo
IPSASs 2014 Isstied in January 2015, )

The most significant changes to the Standarg are:
. Genera_l improvem__ents: To add the treatment_ of trans_action Costs and other €osts incurreq On assets acquired in

The effective date of the amendment js for years begjnning on or after g1 Aprif 201g,

The economic eéntity doss not envisage the adoption of the amendment untj such time gs it becomes appiicable tg the
economic entity's Operations.

The impact of this amendment s Currently being assesseq.
GRAP 103 (as amended 201¢); Heritage Assets
Amendments to the Stangarg of GRAP an Heritage Assets resylteg from inconsistencies in measurement'requirements in

P 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP i relation 1o the treatment gf transaction €osts. Other changeg
resulted from editorial changes (o the original fexi,

The econemic entity does not BNnvisage the adoption of the amendment yntj such time as jt becomes applicable to the
€conomic entity's Operationg,

Itis uniikely that the amendment wiy have a material impacq on the economig entity's Consolidated financiaj statements,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consoiidaied Financial siatements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. New standards and interpretations (continued)
GRAP 106 (a8 amended 2018Y): Transfers of functions petween entities not under common control

Amendments 1o the standard of GRAP on Transter of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control resulted
from changes made to IFRS 3 on Business Combinations {IFRS 3)esa result of the 1ASE's amendments on Annual
improvemenis to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle jssued in December 2013.

The most signiﬂcant ¢hanges fo the Standard are:
« 1ASB amendments: To require contingent consideration that is classified as an assetor @ jiability 1o be measured

at fair vaiue gt each reporting period.
The effective date of the amendment is for years Leginning on or after 01 April 201 8.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time 88 it becomes applicable to the
economic entity's pperations. :

it is unikely that the amendment will have @ material impact on the economic entity's consolidated financial statements.
Directive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reportind Framework bY Public Entities

Historically, public entities have prepared financial statements in accordance with generally recognised accounting practice,
unless the Accounting Standards Board (the Board) approved the application of generaiiy accepted accounting practice for
{nat entity. sizenerally accepted accounting practioe" has been taken to mean Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting practice (Statements of GAAP), OF for certain entifies, internationai Financial Reportind Gtandards (IFRSs)
issued by the international Accounting standards Board. Since statements of GABP have been withdrawn from 1
December 2012, public entities will be required 1o apply another reporting framework in the future. ‘

The purpase of this Directive is to prescribe the criteria to e applied bY public entities in selecting and applying an
appropriate reporting frameworK.

The effective date of the gtandard is for years peginning oN or after 01 April 2018.

The economic entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time a8 it becomes applicable fo the
gconomic entity's operations.

The impact of this standard 8 currently being assessed.

IGRAP 1T: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls @ Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

concession arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, peneficial enfitiement of otherwise, 8 sigmﬁcani residual
interestin 2 service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not canstitute a lease.
This Interpretation of the giandards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy 1o other types of transactions of
arrangemen‘is.

This interpretation of the standards of GRAP provides guidance 1o the grantor where it has entered intc @ service

A service concession arrangement isa gontractual arrangemeni petween @ grantor and an operator in which the operator
uses the service concession assetto provide 8 mandated function on pehalf of the grantor fora specified peried of time.
The operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, gither through
ayments, of through receiving @ right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the
operator is given access o another revenue-generating asset of the grantof for its use.

Before the grantor can recognise 2 service concession assetin accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service
Concession Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria a8 noted in paragraph 01 of this interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP need to be mel. In some sernvice concession arrangements, the grantor only controls the residual interest in the
sernvice concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise {he service concession assetin
terms of the gtandard of GRAP on Service Congession Arrangements: Grantor.
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- :’Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

» 2 New standards qnd interpretations (cdntinued) _

/A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation

- and thé right t6 receive a significarit-interest in a service concession assef. :
" The'effective date of the interpretation is not-yet set'by the Minister of Finance.

The economic-entity does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation until such time as it becomes applicable to the
economic entity's operations.

it is unlikely that the interprétation will have a material impact on the economic entity's consolidated financial statements,
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Greater Tzaneen -Municipality -
Consolidated F:nanclal Statements for {he yEar'e ended 30 June 2017 e

- Notes to the Consohdated Fmanosal Statements

o o Economlcenhty L Controllmg entlty
Figures in Rand e 2017 . e 2017 o 2016 -

3. - Invenfories S T ST

Consumable stores ~ - ¥ G onr mee T B 3382020 cho - g B73E76 . L - 9383202, 1 9873576

Stands 5 420 000 6 420 000 5420 000 '8 420 000

) 14:753:202 16 293 576 14753202 = 16293576

The carrying value of cohsimable stores is disclosed at cost while the carrying value of
stands is disclosed at net realisable value.

4, Other financial assets

At amortised cost

Stand sale arrangements, . . ... 2908488 - 2145732 2908 .489. - 2145732
Fixed deposits - listed _ 25174 276 20939 720 25174 276 20939720
28 082 765 23 085 452 28 082 765 23 085 452

Non-current assets

At amortised cost : 25 174 276 20 638 720 25 174 276 20 38 720
Current assets ) o _
At amortised cost ' 2'908 489 2 145 732 2008489 2145732

Financial assets at amortised cost

Councils valuation of listed investmente

Liberty | 8635 115 8941 855 48635115 8 941 855
Standard Bank 15 539 161 11997 865 15 539 161 11 997 865
25174 276 20 939 720 25174 276 20 938720

Reconciliation of stand sale arrangements

Stand sale arrangement 2 908 489 2145732 2 908 489 2 145732
Less: Current portion {2 908 488) (2 145732) {2 908 489) (2 145 732)
Non-current portion of stand sale - - - -
arrangements

Fair value of investments are at book value as at 30 June 2017.
No non-currenl mvestmenls defaulted and no terms of any of the non-current investments were re-negotlated
The maxlmum exposure to credlt rlsk at the reporhng date is the falr value of each class of fmanclal asset mentioned above

. Fixed deposns of R 9 635 115 and R 15 539 163 have been made w1th leerty and Slandard Bank of South Afnca respecuvely
to repay loans of R 15 000 000 and R 30 000 000 on maturity date.

Loans to staff and the public
To comply with the requirements of the MFMA, no loan has been made after 1 March 2004.

Stand sale arrangements ‘
As from 1 March 2004 no loan agreement has been entered into for the sale of stands. The outstanding loans will be recovered
over the remaining period of the individual loan agreements entered into. .

Arrangements were made to enable people to purchase stands from the Council. These arrangements are repayable within 60
days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. Econemic entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand 2017 2016 2017 ' 2016
§. Receivables from non-exchange transactions
5.1" Traffic fines
Fines 76 141 854 45 691 683 76 141 854 45 691 683
Reconciliation of Balance at Issued Less; Less: Fines Less: Balance at
traffic fines the beginning Withdrawn receipted Provision for the end of the
o of the year impairment year
2017 fines 45 153 383 47 218 700 (3237 571) {4 796 500) (8 197 158) 76 141 854
Baiance at Issued Less: Less: Fines Less: Balance at
the beginning Withdrawn receipted Provision for the end of the
of the year Impairment year
2016 fines 23 132 759 35 080 550 (96 400} {4 546 992) (8 416 534) 45 153 383
Reconciliation of provision for tf_affic fines
Opening balance 18 601 155 10 184 621
Provision for impairment 8197 158 8416 534
26 798 313 18 601 155

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

The accounting Standard Bo.

amended GRAP 1 applying the Probability Test on the Initial Recognition of Revenue to

ard
include revenue from non- exchange transactions. This amendment is applicable to municipalities from 1 July 2013, GRAP 1
indicates that entities should not consider the probability of non- payment on the initial recognition of revenue. This should be

considered as a subsequent even when assessing impairment,

Fine revenue of all fines issued during the current year amounted to R 43 982 120 (2016: R 34 984 15

0). The outstanding fines

were assessed for impairment based on the payment history of fines issued and measures put in place to recover the

outstanding amount.

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Traffic fines are payable as determined by the fine, The credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the

established practices and legislation.

management believes that no additional risk bevond amounts provided for collection losses in inherent in the municipality's

6.2. Operating lease assat {acecrual) -

Current assets 140 816 95 889 149 816 96 889

Municipality as lessor: Future minimum

lease repayments receivable

Less than cne year ‘ 406 659 78 865 406 650 76 865

Between one year and five years 2001 513 183 764 2001513 183 764

More than five years 139 250 165 822 139 250 165 822
2547 422 428 451 2547 422 426 451
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Greater Tzaneen. Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements | ,
. o S ' ~ Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand o o 2017 2016 2017 2016

Operating lease asset (accrual) (continued)
Dperating leases relate 1o propertty owned by the municipality with lease ferms of between one {1) and twenty {20) years, with
an optien to extend the lease. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property al the expiry of the lease period.
The properties are maintained by the tenant, at their cost. No investment property has been disposed of since the date of the
financial statements. :
The municipality has operating lease agreements for the following classes of assets which are only significant collectively.

e Municipa! buildings

+  Vacant land
No restrictions have been imposed on the municipality in terms of the operating lease agreements
6. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debiors 207 385 162 173 827 496 207 385192 173 827 496

Prepayments 7 890 298 7 440 868 7 890 298 7 440 868
Rental deposits 3386 3386 - -
Land deposit - 340 004 - 340 004
Other receivables 27 281 662 24 732 377 27 281 662 24 732 377
Leave pay receivables 30 932 33932 - -
Bursary loans 588 430 467 071 588 430 487 071
243 179 900 206 845 134 243 145 582 206 807 816
Provision for impairment of receivables (22 357 001) (23 555 773) {22 357 001) (23 555 773)
220 822 899 183 289 361 220 788 581 183 252 043

Recongciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 23 655773 17 984 661 23 555 773 17 984 661
Provision for impairment {1198 772} 5571112 {1198 772) 5571112
22 357 001 23 555 773 22 357 001 23 655 773

Credit quality of receivables from exchange transactions

Trade and other debfors are payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the terms

used in the public sector, through established practices and legislation. Discounting of irade and other receivable on initial
recognition is not deemed necessary.

Concentrations of credit visk with respect to trade receivables are limiled due to the municipality's large number of customers.
The municipality's historical experience in collection of trade receivables falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors,
management believes ihat no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the municipality's
trade receivables.

7. Consumer debtors

Gross balances : . S
Rates 131 662 346 112 049 061 131 662 346 112 049 081

Electricity 175 552 844 161 876 524 175 552 844 161 876 524
Refuse 58 453 856 50 399 8O3 5B 453 856 50 399 803

366 669 046 324 325388 365 669 046 324 326 388
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Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures in Rand 2017 2018 2017 2016

7. Consumer debfors {continued)

Less: Allowance for impairment

Rates (114 151 077} {95 439 874) (114 151 077) (95 439 974)

Electricity (92 784 584) (67 162 665) {92 784 584) (67 162 665)

Refuse {51 698 2586) (44 630 537) (51 698 256} (44 630 537)
(258 633 917) {207 233 176) (258 633 917) {207 233 176)

Net balance

Rates 17 511 269 16 609 087 17 511 268 16 608 087

Electricity 82 768 260 94 713 859 82 768 260 94 713 859

Refuse 6 755 600 5769 266 6 755 600 5 769 266
107 035129 117 092 212 107 035129 117 092 212

Included in above is receivables from

exchange transactions

Electricity 82 768 260 94 713 859 82 768 260 94713 859

Water . 6 755.600 5768 266 6 755 600 5 769 266

89 523 860 160483 125 89 523 860 100 483 125

Included in above is receivables from

non-exchange transactions :

Rates 17 511 269 16 609 087 17 511 268 16 609 087

Net balance 107 035 129 117092 212 107 035129 117 092 212

Rates

Current (0 -30 days) 7709 831 6 795 326 7 709 831 6 795 326

31 - 60 days 3864 824 3 475 652 3 864 824 3 475 652

61 - 90 days 3193 455 2 802 586 3193 455 2 802 588

91 - 120 days 3016 564 2712943 3 016 564 2712943

121 - 365 days 113 877 672 96 262 554 113 877 672 96 262 554
131 662 346 112 049 061 131 662 346 112 049 061

Electricity

Current (0 -30 days) 58 882 402 71 373 805 58 882 402 71 373 805

31 - 60 days 8433616 9222 788 8433616 9222 708

61 - 90 days 4 757 065 4 794 641 4757 065 4794 641

81 - 120 days 6 137 955 3 406 481 6137 955 3 4086 481

121 - 365 days 87 341 806 73078 799 87 341 808 73 078 799
175 552 844 161 876 524 175 552 844 161 876 524

Refuse

Current (0 -30 days) 2913936 2787 826 2913936 2787 828

31 - 60 days 1372924 1248 886 1372924 1248 986

61 - 90 days 1144 078 1049 988 1144 078 1049 888

91 - 120 days 1084 429 1023 947 1094 429 1023 947

121 - 365 days 51 928 489 44 289 056 51928 489 44 289 056
58 453 856 60 399 803 58 453 856 50 399 803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures in Rand 2017 2018 2017 2016

7. Consumer debtors {continued)

Summary of debtors by customer classification

Residential property: Ageing

Current {0 -30 days) 26 455 989 23 262 040 26 455 989 23 262 040

31 - 60 days 6 264 761 6877 589 6264 761 6 877 589

61 - 90 days 4 364 409 4223 445 4 364 409 4 223 445

91 - 120 days 4 186 060 3975749 4 186 060 3875749

421 - 365 days 156 002 950 141 505 466 156 002 950 141 505 4686
197 274 169 179 844 289 197 274 169 179 844 289

Industrial and commerciai: Ageing )

Current (0 -30 days) 38 850 568 52 032 851 38 850 588 52 032 851

31-60days 5338 111 4670 459 5338111 4 670 458

61 - 90 days 298471 3181516 2884 7114 3181516

91 - 120 days 4 635 149 2 475393 4 635 149 2 475 393

121 - 365 days 88 222 067 66 800 727 88 222 067 66 800 727 .
140 030 626 129 160 946 140 030 626 129 160 946

National and provincial government:

Ageing

Current (0 -30 days) 1 033 180 1060 342 1033 180 1 060 342

31-60 days 125 944 138 454 125 944 138 454

61 - 90 days 655 391 456 737 655 391 456 737

91 - 120 days 594 319 382 680 594 319 382 680

121 - 365 days 10 236 582 11 305 268 10 236 582 11 305 268

12 646 426 13 343 481 12 645 426 13 343 481

Other: Ageing

Current (0 -30 days} 3 569 463 4601722 3 568 463 4601722

31 -60 days 1 400 430 2 260 933 1 400 430 2 260 933

61 - 90 days 1175 342 785 519 1175 342 785518

91 - 120 days 959 902 309 550 959 802 308 550

121 - 365 days 8613 688 (5 981 053) 8613 688 (5981 053)

15 718 825 1976 671 15 718 825 1976 671
Total 366 669 046 324 325 388 365 669 046 324 325 388

Consumer debtors pledged as security

No porting of accounts receivables was pledge as security for any financial liabilities
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Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand 2017 2016 2017 2016

7. Consumer debtors {continued)
Credit quality of cong umer debtors

The credit quality of consumer debtors that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates:

Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period is considered to e consistent with the lerms used in the
public sector, through established Practices and legislation, Discounting of consumer debtors on initiz) recognition Is not
deemed necessary. )

Concentrations of credit Hisk with respect to consumer debtors are limited due to the Municipality's large number of customers,
The municipality's historicat €Xpetience in collection of consumer debtors falls within fecorded allowances, Due 1o these
factors, management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts brovided for collection losses is inherent tin the
municipality's consumer debtors,

Fair value of consumer debtors

The fair value of accounts receivable approximates their carrying amounts.

Consumer debtors

No security is held for any of the accounts receivable,

Consumer debtors impaired

As of 30 June 2017, consumer debtors of R 258 633 817 (2016: R 207 233 176) were impaired and provided for,

No indigent debtors have been written off as uncollectable during the current financial year. An amount of R 5 699 788 was
written off during the 201 5/2016 financial year as uncollectable,

The amounts best represent the maximum €xposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account
of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Reconciiiation of allowance for impairment of consumer debtors

Opening balance 207 233 178 163 056 873 207 233 178 163 056 873
Allowance for impairment 51 400 741 49 876 091 51400 741 40 876 091
Amounts written off ag uncollectible - (5699 788) - {5 699 788)

258 633 917 207 233 176 258 633 917 207 233178

8. Cash andcash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 178 7758 - -
Bank balances 32 485 494 55 487 332 31 839 163 54 369 420
Short term investments 64 843 2272 - -

32 550 520 55 477 362 31839 163 54 369 420

No cash and cash equivalents, or portion thereof, was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.

No restrictions exjst regarding the use of cash,
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Figures in Rand

g. Cashand cash equivalents {continued}
The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2017 30 June 5046 30 June 2015

Consolidated cash book balance - - - 31 839 163 54 369 420 27 977 498
ABSA BANK - Cheque number -

426 085 0527 Primary Bank

Account

Petty cash - - - 178 7 759 7085
ABSA BANK - Cheque account 2313680 22965 320 27911345 - - -
number - 404 886 4222

ABSA BANK - Cheque Account 1 510 568 317 479 €6 183 - - -
number - 808 197 4990

ABSA BANK - Cheque Account - - - - - -
number - 405 144 4332

ABSA BANK - Liguidity plus 22 534 572 8 228 881 - - - -
Account - 931 2433930 (MIG) )

ABSA BANK - Liquidity plus 4 480 334 22 857 740 - - - -
Account - 931 2434237 (INEP)

ABSA BANK - Cheque account - 646 331 1 097 912 184 318 646 331 1097 912 184 318
40-7166-4582

ABSA BANK - 32 Day notice 340 325 323 340 325 323
account - 92-21 81-3770

ABSA BANK - Depositor Pius 64 508 1 946 235412 64 508 1 946 235412
Account - 02-8795-3029

Total 32550342 55 469 603 28397 551 32550520 55 477 362 28 404 636

The Municipality has two bank accounts to control MIG and INEP funds separately.
Credit quality of Cash and cash equivalents
The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due nor impaired ¢an be assessed by reference to the

municipality's going concerh ratio’s which include current ratic, debt ratio and netincome {o net sales ratio.

9, Investment property

Economic and Controfling entity 2017 2016
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumnulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Investment property 149 081 753 ~ 149081753 14 940 000 - 141940000

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic and Controlling entity - 2017

QOpening Additions Total
balance
Invesiment property 141 940 000 7141753 149081 753
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Figures in Rand

9. investment property (continued)

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic and Controlling entity - 2016

Opening Additions Disposals
. _ balance
investment propery 137 786 000

Transfers Total

{1148 000) 141 940 00p

€ 700 000 (1 400 000)

Pledged as security
No investment properties was pledged as security for liabilities.

A register containing the information required by
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.

Details of valuation

seclion 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for

The Greater Tzaneen Municipal valuations is based on the valuation roll which is review every four years. The iast valuation roil
came into effect on 1 July 2013, Supplementary valuations are issued and processed annually to take into account changes in

individual property value due to alterations and subdivisions,

10. Property, plant and equipment

Economic entity 2017 2018
Cost / Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
7 impairment impairment
Land 108 830 310 - 108830310 108830310 - 108 830 310
Furniture and fixtures 171732 (122 923) 48 809 171732 (110 844) 60 888
Office equipment 40 108 (40 107) 1 40108 (37 098) - 3010
IT equipment 149 690 (143 640) 5 750 142 191 {140 6209) 1562
infrastructure 2295 441 572 '1 028 625 791)1 266 815 781 2 263 705 847 (912 136 693) 1 351 569 254
Community 124569697 (254678 024) 98891673 103863 380  (22561144) 81102 236
Other equipment 58 988 033 - 58988033 52887258 - 52887258
Other assets 70163897 (50 305 783) 19858214 &g ogo 722 (44599702) 22 391 020
Leased assets 14 349 108 {7 041 695) 7307413 12373 188 {9 634 275) 333891
Total 26727042471 111 958 263) 1 560 745 984 2 608 804 834 (988 620 385) 1 620 184 449
Controlling entit ‘ 2017 2016 ,
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated’ Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Land 108 830 310 - 108830310 108 830 310 - 108830 310
Infrastructure 2295441 571 1 028 625 790} 1 266 815 781 2 263 705 946 (912 136 694) 1 351 560 252
Community 124560686 (25678 024) 98891672 103663 381 (22561 144) 81 102 237
Work in progress 58 988 033 - 58988033 52887258 ~ 52887 258
" Other assets 70163998 (50 305 782) 19858216 66990 723 (44500702) 2239 021
Leased assets 14 349 107 {7 041 895) 7307412 12373188 (9034 275) 3338 911
Total {988 331 815) 1 620 118 088

2672342 715{1 111 651 291)1 560 691 424 2 608 450 804
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

A register containing the information required by section 3. of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the reglstered office of the municipality.

The prior period balances were restated for prior year errors. Refer to note 60 for detail.

A detailed breakdown of property plant and equipment by asset class can be found in Annexure "B"

11. Intangible assets

Economic entity 2017 2016
Cost/ Accumulated  Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amoriisation Valuation amortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Computer software, internally 2 502 992 {1 578 091} 024 901 1871624 (1 269 259) 602 365
generated .
Website 45 051 (45 051) - 45 051 (44 626) 425
Total 2 548 043 {1623 142) 924 901 1916 675 (1313 885) 602 790
Controlling entity 2017 2016
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amortisation Valuation amorttisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Computer software 2 454 305 {1 537 467) 916 838 1822 937 (1 241 812} 581 1256
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity - 2017
Opening Additions Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software, internally generated 602 365 631 368 (308 832) 924 901
Website 425 - (425) -
602 790 631 368 (309 257) 924 901
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity - 2016
Opening Additions  Amortisation Impairment Total
balance loss
Computer software, internally generated §74 598 542 641 {805 509) (9 365) 602 365
Website 6 757 - (6 332) _ - 425
881 355 542 641 (811 841) (9 365} 602 790
Rreconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2017
Opening Additions Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software 581125 631 368 {295 655) 916 838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

11, Intangible assets {continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2016

Opening Additions Amortisation Impairment Total
balance loss
Computer soffware 840 181 542 841 (792 332) (9 365) 581 128

Pledged as security
No Intangible assets have been piedged as security for any lizbility.
12, Other financial Habilities

At Amortised cost

Other

DBSA local registered loan stock 15 000 000 15 000 000 15 000 000 15 000 000

Loan Stock - Standard Bank 30 000 000 30 000 00O 30 000 00O 30 000 000
45 000 000 45000000 45 000 000 45 000 000

Annuity loans

Annuity loan - DBSA 33411 1867 35 050 211 33411 167 35 050 211

Annuity loan - ABSA 19673 107 20 862 705 19673 107 20 862 705

Annuity loan - INCA 5523 180 8685323 5523180 8685323

Annuity loan - Standard Bank 8147 524 14 593 209 8147 524 14 583 209

Annhuity loan - DBSA 7 738 405 31 300 000 7738 405 31 300 000
74 493 383 110 481 448 74 493 383 110 491 448

Total other financial liabilities 119 493 383 156 491 448 11¢ 493 383 156 491 448

Non-current liabilities

At amortised cost ‘

Other 45000 000 45 000 000 45 000 000 45 000 000

Annuity joans 57 417 471 82 626 647 57 417 471 82 626 647

102 417 471 127 626 647 102 417 471 127 626 647
Current liabilities
At amortised cost 17075913 27 864 801 17 075 813 27 864 801

Annuity toan - Standard Bank

This loan has been split into two allocations of R21 011 000 and R13 281 000 and was taken Up on 30 June 2012, These loans
bear interest af rates of 11,8% and 10,96% respectively and will be fully redeemed on 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2017
respectiveiy.

Annuity loan - ABSA

Thig loan has been split into two allocations of R25 140 000 and R9 640 000 and was taken up on 15 August 2010. These
loans baar interest at rates of 10,62% and 6,75% respectively and will be fully redeemed on 21 Juiy 2025 and 30 June 2018
respectively,

Annuity foan - DBSA

A loan of R41 000 000 of which R 35 010 350 has been allocated during the 2010/ 2011 financial year was taken up fo finance
capital projects, This loan bears Interest at a rate of 8,75% Per annum and will be fully redeemed on 31 October 2030,
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Figures in Rand 2017 2016 2017 2016

12. Other financial liabilities (continued)
Annuity loan - INCA

The loan has been laken up to finance the purchase of land. It bears interest at a rate of 12,5% per annum and will be fully
redeemed on 31 December 2018.

Loan stock: DBSA (Excelsior 1 000 investment)

An annual investment of R855 619 has been made with Liberty to repay 2 toan of R15 000 000 on maturity date. The loan
bears interest at a variable rate and will be redeemed on 30 September 2019,

Annuily loan: DBSA

A loan of R 31 300 000 has peen allocated to the municipality during May 2016 by DRSA. The loan bears interest at 9% and
will be fully redeemed on 30 June 2018. The ioan is in respect of the DBSA, INEP frontloading programme as proposed by the
Department of Energy (DOE}

Loan Stock: Standard Bank

A loan of R 30 000 000 has peen taken up fo finance capital projects. The loan bears interest at a rate of 12.09 % per annum
and will be redeemed on 46 October 2025.

Undrawn borrowings '

There were no undrawn borrowing facilities that were available for future activities or to settle capital commitments at 30 June
2017.

None of the loans are secured by any fixed or movable assets of the Greater Tzaneen Municipality.

The municipality did not default on any of the borrewings in respect of capital or inferest portions.

No terms attached to the financial liabilities were re-negotiated.
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